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Name Chiswell's Inheritance

Planning Area/Site Number 17-19 3. MNCPPC Atlas Reference
Map 5, Coordinate E-20
Address 18200 Beallsville Road

. Poolesville, MD 20837
Classification Summary

Category_ Building

Ownership Private

Public Acquisition .2

Status Cccupied

Accessible Yes, restricted

Present use_ Private residence

Previous Survey RecordingNRHP, HABS Federal XState_X CountyX LocalX _

Joseph Newton Chiswell
Apparent Condition

a .God ¢ .__Substantially unaltered

P .Qriginal Site

Description

Brick plantation house of two stary, five bay main block with attached kitchen wing.
large chirmey at each end of main block and chimney on end of kitchen wing. Front,
flemish bond, other walls, comon bond. Twelve over twelve windows, first floor; nine
over six, second floor. There are nine fireplaces. Carved woodwork throughout the house:
intricately decorated north wall of living rocm; window in closet in living roam; carved
decoration and variety of balustraded, including cne run of a Chinese Chippendale
trellis pattern, of main staircase; panelling throughout; carved chair rail in dining room.
Date,"1796" inlaid in glazed brick north chimney. Slate roof. Seneca sandstome foundation:

Significance

Plantation house built in 1796 by Joseph Newton Chiswell, only scn of cne of the
earliest settlers of (now) Montgamery County, on land patented by his father in the year
of his birth and given to him on his twenty-first birthday.

It has been lived in and the land farmed continuocusly since at least 1976.

The house is an elegant campromise of the rugged demands of the 18th century farm
life and those of the well-to—do gentleman planter's family. The house is one of the
earliest in Western Montgamery County to be built with a conscious attention to
architectural style. At a time when most of the neighboring houses were of log, Joseph
Chiswell built a house of brick, with symmetry on the main facade and highly stylized
interiar detail.

Dete researched 1975 David L Prestemon, George and Mary Ann Kephart
Natalie Bates, Christopher Owens
Compiler 13. Date Compiled

id, Des' nacion
M.A.G. Kephart Nov., 1978 Arorova
15. Acreage = 135 acres
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‘7. DESCRIPTION

(Check One)

X Excellent ] Good 7V Fair 71 Deterioroted ™1 Ruins [’} Unexposed

CONDITION e e T T T
(Chieck One)

(Check (;11;)
\ XX Altered "} Unaltered ] Moved xqH Original Site

R S I _
DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND SORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The brick plantation house consists of a main block with an
attached kitchen wing on the south end. The foundation,
visible on the exterior only from the west, is of local pink
sandstonc. The roofing is slate shingle.

The five-bay main facade faces east. It is laid up in Flemish
vond with a water table of quarter-round profile about two

feet above ground level. The central doorway is topped by a
five light transom; two large twelve over twelve double hung
sash windows are on each side of the doorway. The second story
has five nine over six double hung sash windows. The walls are
carried over the openings by jack arches.

The north end, laid up in common pond, has a flush gable chim-
ney capped with five courses of corbelled bricks. Inlaid in
glazed brick near the peak of the gable is the inscription

"C §" with the date "1796" below. There are small four light
windows opening into the attic on the extreme of the gable.
Two windows at the east and west extremes of the first floor
have been bricked in.

The west facade, laid up in common bond, has a central rear
door with two nine over rine hung sash to the north and two
six over six double hung sash to the south on the ground floor.

sized nine over siX windows and an additional small, four over
four double hung sash with a single shutter.

The south.end has an external chimney with a two-story base
tapering to a stack. small single light windows pierce the
gable on either side of the stack with two larger four over
four double hung sash below. A door opening exists on the
south as well as on either side of the kitchen wing. The west-
ern door opens to a recently added porch. The eastern door
opens into a walkway to the kitchen wing which was formerly
exposed, but was enclosed at sometime in the past.

The kitchen wing rests on a stone foundation without a base-

_standing stack capped by four courses of corbelled brick. The
chimney base is of two depths, one for the main cooking fire-
place, and one for the bake-oven. The one-and-one-half-story
base has tapered weatherings, the east part of the base pro-
jecting outward about one-and-one-half feet less than the rest.
Dormers on either side of the roof are later additions.

Both the main block and the kitchen wing have boxed cornices
covering the rafter cnds. :

(See Continuation Sheet #1)

on the second floor there are three symmetrically spaced, equal-

ment. It has an external chimney on the south end with a frec- |
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#7 Description (Continued) [

The Lasement is divided into Lhroe rooms by the sandstone founix#
tion walls that support the interior brick partition walls above.l
The longitudinal wall runs the length of the house and divides
the basement in half. The east-west wall runs only from the
eastern foundation to the central wall, dividing the eastern
portion of the basement into two smaller rooms. (The western
end of the east-west wall is supported by posts.) The longitu-
dinal wall is pierced by two doors and small wooden-grilled win-
dow openings into each of the smaller rooms. There is a fire-
place on the western side of the north wall and a fireplace
foundation on the eastern side of that wall. A small segment of
the arch supporting the southern hearths is also visible in the
basement.

In the attic, five seven-foot high posts resting on the brick
north-south partition wall support a longitudinal tie-becam which
is mortised into the brick end walls. The posts are supported
by angle braces resting on the interior partition walls. Pegged
to this beam are lateral tie-beams. which are mortised, tenoned,
and pegged to the rafters near their midpoints. The rafters in
turn are mortised, tenoned, and pegged at the peak. The floor
joists rest on and overhang the exterior walls and are in-filled
between. They support a false plate to which the ends of the
rafters are mortised, tenoned and pegged.

On the narth end of the attic the separate fireplace stacks, two-
flue on the eastern side of the house and three-flue on the west-
eérn converge forming a corbelled arch.

The interior of the main block of the house is divided approxi-

mately into quarters by the interior partition walls., The
longitudinal, north-south partition wall is constructed of brick,
approximately one foot thick, rising the full two stories. The

east-west partition wall, located slightly to the south of the
center line of the house, is of brick nogging construction on
the first story and wood above.

On the ground floor, the main doorway opens directly into the
northeast (living) room. The north wall of this room has a cen-
tral fireplace flanked by cupboards. The fireplace opening is
enclosed by a dogyeared surround of heavy molding. This cavries
consoles which support a carved fricze course, bed molding and
mantle shelf. The central motif of the fireplace is a block
decorated with a carved flower design and a cutout ogee arch.
Above the mantle shelf is a panel with a crossetted surround,
shield motif carvings in the crossetts, and bellflower motif

L _ e (See Continuation Sheet #2) N
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Chiswell family is one of the earliest in this part of
Maryland. Stephen Newton Chiswell emigrated from Leicester-
shire, England in 1735 at the age of 20. He originally set-
tled in Anne Arundel County. ' After marrying his first cousin,
sarah, he moved to the Poolesville area where he had acquired
considerable landholdings through patents from the Crown.

Stephen Chiswell is referred to in the land records of the
time as "planter of Frederick County" and his only son, Joseph;
carried on this family tradition. 1In 1778, on his twenty-
first birthday, Joseph Newton Chiswell received from his
father a gift of some one hundred and forty acres of land.
Included in this gift ~as a tract of ninety acres which
Stephen had named Joseph's Choice when he acguired it by
patent from George I1I in the year of Joseph's birth. Most of
this original tract 1is included in the present farm.

During the next ten years, Joseph Chiswell acquired several
contiguous parcels of land and in 1788 he obtained from the
State of Maryland a patent for his consolidated holdings under
the name of "Chiswell's Inheritance." He built the existing
plantation house in 1796. The house has been lived in and the
1and farmed continuously since at least that date.

Chiswell's Inheritance is an elegant compromise of the rugged
demands of eighteenth century farm life and those of the well-
to-do gentlemen'planter's family. ‘The house is one of the
carliest in Western Montgomery County to be built with a
conscidus attention to architectural style. At a time when
most of the neighboring houses were of log with little atten-
tion to summetry and detail, Joseph Chiswell built a house
with symmetry on the main facade and highly stylized interior
detail. The carved woodwork throughout the house has a
character that differentiates it from other Montgomery County
buildings. The origin of the designs is unknown, but of
particular significance are: a) the intricately decorated
north wall of the living room, b) the window in a clecset on
the north wall of the living room. (This may be the only ex-
ample of this type of window in Maryland.), c) the main

(Seekggntinuation Sheet #5)

e TRT




Form 10-300qa UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Maryland /1‘/7,/f

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES [coonTv
Montgomery
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER ODATE

(Continuation Sheet) #2
T S

(Number all entries)

#7 LCescription (Continued)

decorations along the outside of Lhe molded surround. The ceil-
ing cornice has a vine motif of high rederal style.

The flanking corner cupboards have double, round arched, three-
panel doors with a five inch molded surround and molded keystone.
Inside the left cupboard are three butterfly shelves. The bottom
two shelves are absent in the right hand cupboard; the now-
bricked window in the north wall is visible at the back of the
cupboard.

A door in the south wall of the living room leads to the dining
room. The south wall of this room has a door on the eastern

side opening on a walkway to the kitchen wing. Next to this, and
slightly off-center to the west, is a fireplace with a dogeared 1
surround supporting fluted blocks, a dentiled course and a molded |
mantle shelf. The central motif is a block carved with a design
consisting of three six-pointed flowers separated by groups of
five flutings. To the right of the fireplace, about four feet
from floor level, is a one—-and-one-half foot by one-and-one-half
foot pass-through to the kitchen w'ng.

A door in the west wall of the dining room leads to the present
kitchen. The south wall of the kitchen has a door on the west-
ern side and a fireplace off-center to the eastern side. The
fireplace is decorated with a dogeared surround, supporting two
brackets,. a course carved in a triglyph and metope motif and a
molded mantle shelf. A block in the center of the frieze is
carved with a motif of three diamonds separated by groups of fivd
flutings.

et e W, n e

The door in the west facade opens into an entrance hall. To the a
north of the hall is a small library. The small, centered fire-
place in the library has a dogeared surround, surmounted by a
three-panel frieze, bed molding, and mantle shelf. To the west
of the fireplace is 'a bricked in window opening. To the east

is a two-door closet with a molded surround, carved frieze, ard
.a pediment.’

On the ground floor, the jambs and soffits of all the windows and s
the two doors through the longitudinal partition wall are panel -

led. The jambs of the windows in the main facade are splayed,
The three doors in the exterior walls (other than the door in

the kitchen) are hung with hand-wrought strap hinges approximate-
ly three feet long. The doors in the rear facade and in the south
wall of the dining room are of diagonal beaded boards on the in-
side and panels on the outside. The main door is panelled on

both sides., (See Continuation Sheet #3)
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The chair rail throughout the rooms of both the first and second
floors is three-inch beaded board with a rail of semicircular
profile. The exception is the dining room which has an unusual
chair rail consisting of a beaded board and an applied band
carved in a triglvph and metope motif similar to the course
above the kitchen fireplace.

The main stalrcase, rising along the north wall of the entrance
hall, is a three-run, half-turn staircase with landings. TwoO
turned balusters rest on each tread and support a carved hand-
rail. Each tread is supported by a bed molding and the tread
ends are decorated with a carved motif. There are small newel
posts at the turns. The balustrade continues along the second
floor hall and up the stairs to the attic as far as the turn.
The narrow guarter-turn staircase with winders leading to the
attic has a patterned, jigsaw-work balustrade on the left-hand
side. On the right-hand side, from the turn of the stairs to
the attic is a Chinese Chippendale trellis balustrade.

From the second floor hall, between the attic stairs and the
west wall is the entrance to the northwest room. The fireplace
in the north wall of this room is off-center .to the west. It

is identical in decoration to, but smaller than, the fireplace
in the library below. The fireplace is flanked by closets. The
room is separated from the hall by a partition wall of beaded
board.

The master bedroom in the northeast corner of the second floor
has a fireplace in the north wall slightly off-center to the
ecast. The fireplace is enclosed by a dogeared surround with a
three panel frieze above and a mantle shelf supported by a bed
molding. It is flanked by closets, around the doors of which
are dogeared moldings with a plain keystone. Above the fire-
place is a recessed: panel surrounded by a dogeared molding.

The bedrooms in the southeast and southwest corners of the secondg
- floor are plain. Each has a fireplace with a molded surround
and a molded mantle shelf.

On the east side of the kitchen wing is a small room approximate-
ly six feet by ten feet, presently a laundry room and formerly
"slave quarters."

The "old kitchen" has two fireplaces in the south wall, a largye
(approximately five fect wide by four feet high) cooking fire-
place with a period crane, and a smaller fireplace with a bake

(sec Continuation Sheet #4)
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oven. (The bake oven opening is bricked in behind.) There are

metal support bands under the header arches of the two fireplaces
All of the exterior openings have wooden lintels, the one over
the door and a window in the west wall being continuous. A
wooden ladder fixed to the wall in the northeast corner leads to
a trapdoor to the loft above (the opening is now covered over) .

Alterations:

The following alterations have been significant in giving the

house its present appearance:

a. Two windows in the north wall on the ground floor have been
bricked in. They appear to have been closed very early in the
life of the house, probably because the prevailing winter winds

make this wall very cold even today.

b. On both the first and seccnd floors, there were originally
no doors between the halls and th~southwest rooms. These are
later additions. Also, the wall between the southwest bedroom
on the second floor and the bathroom is not original.

c. The wall between the northeast and southeast bedrooms on
the second floor originally was identical to the first floor wall )
immediatgely below though of wood rather than brick construction.
This wall has been removed and remodeled with closets and a bath-

room.

d. A narrow staircase that led from the present kitchen (ris- 4
ing in the northwest corner of that room) to the southwest bed- 1
room and then to the attic has been removed. There is some evi- {
dence that a similar staircase may have led from the southeast ]
bedroom to the attic, though if it did exist, it must have been 7

removed a considerable time ago.

e. The door in the south wall of the present kitchen was orig- :

'inally a window.

f. The walkway between the door in the south wall of the din-
ing room and the "slave quarters" in the kitchen wing was orig-
inally exposed to the east (though covered by the kitchen wing
roof). It has been enclosed to form a hall and a stairway has
been added rising from the hall to the loft above the old

kitchen.

(See Continuation Sheet #5)
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g. No alterations have significantly changed the exterior ap-
pearance of the house (with the exception of the enclosed walk-
way) . The outlines of large porches, nineteenth century addi-
tions now removed, are visible in the brickwork in the front and
rear of the house. A porch has been added to the west side of

the kitchen wing. A walled terrace has recently been constructed
raising the level of the west lawn approximately two feet to the
level of the rear door.

Also included within the nominated property is an excellent ex-
ample of a large bank barn. The frame, mortised, tenoned, and
pegged, rests on a two foot thick sandstone wall. The posts and
beams of the frame are hand-hewn oak, six to eight inches saquare.
There is some evidence, in the memories of local people, that the
barn was in existence at least as early as the Civil War. It is
in good condition and in current use.

Six of the original sandstone boundary markers of Chiswell's
Inheritance remain on the property, intact, in place and in good
condition. A typical inscription is quoted below.

No. 22
Chiswell's Inheritance
Joseph's Choice
- At This End F'd Line
J N C 1793

48 Significance (Continued)

staircase with its carved decoration and variety of balustrades,
including one run of a Chinese Chippendale trellis pattern,

d) the panelling throughout, e) the carved chair rail of the
dining roon.

The farm as a whole, the house together with the supporting out-
buildings, and the land itself preserve a representative example
of eighteenth and nineteenth century plantation life in Maryland.
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Stabler, daughter of John Stabler. The children
of this marriage were Miriam, who married

Samuel Thomas of Cherry Grove, Anna, wife of -

Dr. L. T. Bussler of Ashton, Margery, widow of
the Jate Reuben Brighaw, still living in Ashton,
and Edward, deccased—and Elsic Snowden the
artist, now deceased.

Kdward married Nellie Kelly of Howard
County and bought Auburn, which had been the
howe of his great-grandfather. Edward bought
Auburn leaving one hundred and ten acres with
Ingleside. =~

After the death of Franecis in 1936, and Fan-
niec Snowden in 1943, one hundred acres of the
Ingleside farm were sold to Everett Sanders,
who owned Crestleigh nearby. This left ten
acres and the house to Elsie Snowden. She lived
there alone, pursuing her painting until her
death in 1945 when the old homestead was sold
to Mr. and Mrs. McLaury. Mr. and Mrs. Me-
Laury sold the Snowden place to Mr. Williaimn I,
Bowling, owner 1961.

Franeis, or ‘“‘Frank’’ as he was called, a quiet
unassuming gentleman of the old Sonth, was a
good farmer and generous neighbor. For many
years he kept a pack of Brooke foxhounds and

ISR
WSoRyY OF mar co |, - FReguure ;) (A2,

M 1719

Ihstoric MonteoMERY County, MaAryrasn

is well remembered, jogging along in his buggy
with the hounds trotting beside Lim on their
way to Howard County and the Patuxent River
Valley. His delight was to sit at night on a
high hill listening to the melodious notes of his
hounds in valley and meadows.

Klsic Snowden was a talented artist ; her work
in water color was highly regarded by art crities
of Washington and Philadelphia. She won a
nuiber of awards and seholarships for paint-
ings whieh she exhibited from time to thue.

The Ingleside house has been considerably
modified since it was oceupied by the Snowden
family. To the left is a large living room, for-
werly divided from the hall by a partition. To
the right of the lall is a library with fireplace
behind whieh is a dining room extending the
width of the house. The floors are mediunm-
width pine in fine condition.

The outside walls are unusual for a house
built after 1800. They are of pine poles, hand-
hewn on two sides, aud set vertieally for stud-
ding, then filled in or “nogged?’’ with red brick.
The bricks have been left exposed in many
places on the inside and the whole makes a very
attraetive, mosaie-like interior wail.

Chiswell’s Iﬁheritance

UT for the ambition and determination of
an Fnglishman and his courage in con-
quering a wilderness in Amevrica, one of

the finest Colonial houses in Montgomery
County might never have been built. The brick
llouse shown, an excellent example of ecrafts-
manship, has stood in the eastern edge of Pooles-
ville, abont twenty miles northeast of Rockville
sinee 1796,

Unlike so many Colonial houses, standing for
100 years or so as monuments to their builders,
this one is definitely dated, for on the gable and
near the peak of the roof can be plainly seen in
black header bricks, *“C'. N. 1796, standing for
Stephen Newton (hiswell, the builder.

That young man in 1735 at the age of twenty
years set out from England as a passenger on
a sailing vessel with a firm ambition to make his
way in America. s plan was to go to live
with his uneley Joseph Newton, who was sottled
in Anne Arundel County, Maryland. On his

STEPHEIEN NEWTON CIISWIELL
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way across the Atlantie the ship was wrecked.
The young man, with three others, was picked
up by another ship and taken to Rhode Island.
After many other adventures, he finally reached
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hix nnele’s house in lower Maryland. Not long
after his arrival there, he obtained a grant of
~ceveral thousand acres of land known as Chis-
well's Inheritance from the Lord Proprietary
Governor of the Province. The land was in
Frederick Conuty, as Montgomery County did
not become a separate county until 1776.

After residing with his uncle, Joseph Newton,
for a while, Stephen fell in love with Saraly, his
first cousin and the oldest daughter of his uncle,
As his unele was a widower, he de-
nmrred when Steplien asked for permission to
marry Sarah. He replied that he eould not spare
her, as he was dependent upon her to look after
his other daughters and take care of the domes-
tic aftairs of the home. Young Stephen per-
sisted,

I'inally his unele made him a proposition. e
suggested that his four danghters be stood up
in a row, their ages varying from Sarah who
wasx 17, to the voungest who was only 8, and
that Stephen decide which of the sisters, except-
iug Sarah, should become his bride with the
father’s blessing, But Stephen, being a young
man of discrimination as well as determination,
held to his decision, and refused to be satished
with anvone but Sarah,

The couple, feeling that the pavental blessing
wonld not be fortheoming, decided upon elope-
ment. The next day, according to the tradition
of the family, Saral rode her own horse to the
chnrell, met her lover, and was married. They
then travelled to Chiswell’s Lodge, where they
built a log cabin in the wilderness in 1738, and
apparently lived happily for many years, for
it was not until fiftv-eight vears later that
Stephen attained his birming ambition to build
a tine brick house, a reproduction of the home
Le left in IEngland. A deed is on record in Roek-
ville, dated September 11, 1787, conveying five
plots of Taud, equalling two hundred and ninety-
<iv acres, to Stephen Newton Chiswell, and it is
called Sarah’s Choice.

The house was built of rough large Iinglish
brick, aid up in Flemish bond by Iinglish brick-
makers, and no doubt made in a kiln in the
neighborhood. The familiar ronnded wate: table

Joseph,

appears about thirty inches above the ground,
and the whole is a fine job of brickwork. There
are four rooms on the first floor, including the
old slave kitehen wiich has a seven-toot high
fireplace with the erane still in place, and an old
bake oven on the left side. 1Sach of the other
rooms on the first floor has a fireplace. The
second floor has fonr roonms and four fireplaces.
and there is a cellar under the whole honse with
another large slave kitehen-type fireplace. mak-
ing uine fireplaees i alh

In the main or hiving room on the tirst floor
there is a verv fine large carved mantel with
corner euphboards on cach side and a display of
sonme fine paneling. A number ot “HIT"" and
“11L°7 hinges «are to be seem, and the huge
strap hinges, barn-door type, are on the two
ontside doors, the lutter being as loug as the
doors ave wide.

Ilarly in the nineteenth century the honse,
with a large acreage, was sold in accordance
with instrnetion in the will of Joseph Newton
Chiswell, Jr., who had inherited it from lis
fatlior. Before the Civil War it belonged to a
family named Matthews, after whiel for a num-
ber of years it was owned by Dr. Thomas 14
Johuson, a prominent physician of I'rederick.
From his estate in 1929, the honse with 130 aeres
of land, was purchased by Mrs. Beryl E. Gray.
In 1956 this handsonie colonial house, with abont
130 acres ol lTand, was purchased from the extate
of Mrs. Gray, by Mr. & Mrs. George O. Kephart,

1t is of especial interest that Mrs, Kephart's
great-grandfather, was a son of Sarah Newton
Chiswell, who was o granddaughter ot Stephen
Newren Uhiaswell, the romantie yonth, who was
shipwrecked on his way to Ameriea, and to
afluence, and the man who bmlt the sturdy
Louse 1 1796,

The children of Mr. & Mrs, Kephart are,
George Overton Kephart, Jr.. age 17, Elizabeth
Perry Kephart, age 16, and Amn Frazer Kep-
hart, age 12 vears. George s a student at Lan-
don School. and Klizabeth 1= attending Holton
Arms School, and Ann attends Leland Jumor

High.
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